CITY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING PACKET
February 2, 2026 @ 6:00pm Heritage Hall in Smith Park

1. Call to Order: Mayor William Lindsey
2. Roll Call: Clerk of Council

3. Invocation:

4. Pledge of Allegiance: All

5. Action on Minutes: 1/20/26 Regular Meeting
6. Communications:

7. City Manager Report:  Attached

8. Committee Reports: ~ None

9.

Comments from Members of the Public: *Comments limited to 5 minutes or less

10. RESOLUTIONS: NONE

11. ORDINANCES: (4-Intro; — 2-Action*)

*A. Ordinance 2026-01 (Introduced on 01/20/26. Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING WITH THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UNIT FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADDING A CELL
PHONE ISSUANCE AND STIPEND POLICY

*B. Ordinance 2026-02 (Introduced on 01/20/26. Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLE VIII OF THE CITY CHARTER

C. Ordinance 2026-03 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 02/17/26)

AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING A MORATORIUM ON NEW VAPE SHOPS WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW
CARLISLE, OHIO

D. Ordinance 2026-04 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 02/17/26)

AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE MORATORIUM ON CANNABIS OPERATIONS WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW
CARLISLE, OHIO

E. Ordinance 2026-05 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 02/17/26)

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON SMALL SOLAR FACILITIES WITHIN THE CITY OF
NEW CARLISLE, OHIO

F. Ordinance 2026-06 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 02/17/26)

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON DATA CENTERS WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW
CARLISLE, OHIO

12. OTHER BUSINESS:
o Additional City Business:
»  City Offices Closed 02/16/26 for President’s Day
= Open for Discussion on City Related Business

13. Executive Session: Discussing the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion,
demotion, or compensation of a public employee or official.

14. Return to Regular Session:
15. Adjournment:

Next Regular Council Meeting is Tuesday, February 17, 2026 (@ Heritage Hall in Smith Park. 6:00PM




1/20/26

RECORD OF PROCEDING
MINUTES: CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO
REGULAR SESSION MEETING @ Heritage Hall on 1/20/26 @ 6:00 pm

1. Call to Order: Mayor Lindsey calls the meeting to order.
2. Roll Call: Stapleton calls the roll — Lindsey, Cook, Bahun, Grow, Wright, Eggleston, Shamy 7
Members present
3. Invocation: Chief Trusty
4. Pledge of Allegiance: All are welcome to participate
5. Action on Minutes:
Action on Regular Session minutes of 1/5/26: 1%: Cook, 2"*: Shamy, YES: Lindsey, Cook, Bahun,
Grow, Wright, Eggleston, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0
6. Communications : Charlotte Farley, Social Service Commission Interview / Appointment.
» Comments from council and appreciation for applying and loving New Carlisle.
» Motion to accept Charlotte Farley to the Social Service Commission, 1%': Cook 2": Shamy YES:
Lindsey, Cook, Bahun, Grow, Wright, Eggleston, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted: 7-0
» Mayor Lindsey swore Charlotte to the Social Service Commission.
> Motion to Break Rules of Council, 1%*: Wright 2"%: Cook YES: Bahun, Grown, Wright, Eggleston,
Shamy, Lindsey, Cook NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0
» Motion to move to Executive Session to discuss Economic development, 1%: Cook 2": Shamy
YES: Lindsey, Cook, Bahun, Grow, Wright, Eggleston, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0 @6:07pm
» Motion to return to Regular Session 1%: Cook 2"*: Shamy YES: Lindsey, Cook, Bahun, Grow,
Wright, Eggleston, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0 @ 7:06pm
7. City Manager’s Report:

Count of Incidents by Incident Type

B Planning Department Report
e December 2025




CI1Y OF NEW CARUSLE MAYOK'S COURT

5100 pls conrt con.

M, e o

hen et it b s iyt spect by 24° of e
Parsons, Ryan & fSpiegtad shed ity 1 Oparating s Moser Vehide wibout s Fied 500
b court cone. n
then $400 free wil be suspended.

saver . .
Cuae e, #med $550 s court cont. I deflendant pravides i Court weth 3 vald Kcense
"

within 140 days then 600 ine wll be waganded.

Peaueited o speshta the Prosecute

PAID THAOUGH VIOLATION BUREA
Rebinson Kactyn of New Carale, Psking where ignspeohibt paking. $40
Swdow, Lore of Colambss, Parking where Signs prohist parking 540

CITY OF NEW CARLISLE MAYOR'S COURT

Vi

‘Court Report Decembar 17, 2025

Court Repart Docembes 9, 2025

Gbeon,
theee past due cases. Continued unti Jamuary 28

Matines-Moja, Kicharda of New Carila ied gty 10 Operating 4 Motor Vebicke withert &

Adams, Banny of New C Payment
amended to start December 19, Fifty dollars every other week

Ml

agreed to have the defendant pay court cost

ID THROUGH VIOLATION
Herandes, Jacelyne of Troy, Aeasonable Control, $170
Talor, Hesther of DeGratf, Parking Violation, $40

aniel W of New Carlsle pled not guifty to Expired Registration. Dafendant spoke o
the Prosecutor. Since defendant renewed the day aftes the citation was issued, The Prasecutor

‘Clark County Sherifls Office
New Carliske Division

Maonthly Statisical Report

Reporting Peried: Decernber 2025 Submitted
Subimitted by: Sgt. Chrting Eves-Fisher

1. Calls for Service

Total Calls for Serviee: 137
SelF-tuitiated Call: 115
Business Checks: 633
Commusity lnteractions: 434

2. Incident Breakdown

e type et
s v

ot/ operyCames 2 Ao
Domestic Violence: 2 Misdemeance: 12
N Do 3 o
St PerVeicle 15 Wor 3
Tafie Coshes u

o

Mool HesEDP Calls 6
Juvenile Complsinss '

3. Traffic Enforcement
Traffic Stops Comducted: 9

Cltatons Iasuod: 9
Warnings: 9
Parking: 3

Respectfully submitted.
St Christing Evans-Fisher
Administrative Sergeant

New Carliske Division
Clark County Sherifl's Office

‘ty Masager Me. Hal, City Councsl

Parsons, Marcid of New Carlise pled gulty to Property Structure, Vegetation and Strcture
Soundnes. Fined 5600 pus court cont, # Sefendant i icompl

e with 30 days weather

e,
Prosecitor. Case continued unth January 14, 2026,

wies,
Continued unti amuary 14, 2026

PR THROUGH YIOIATION BUREAU
Grogz. Allen  of Dayton, Parking. 40

Kroeker, Tave of New Caribe, Speed 74735, 5245

1/20/26

COUNCIL FINANCIAL REPORT SUMMARY ~ DECEMBER 2025
Eatimated Revenue 5 74BL33050 3025 Origina Budget 5 886713200
Amendod Est. Rescuces § 24120100 1010, Supplemental § 241204100
Amended £5t Resowces $ 2574100 040 Sppiemental § 10000
Amendod £5t Resowces $ 4Q0O000 0.0 Sppemental § D300
Amended Ext. Resouces O Spemental § Z50W00
G Suppiemental 5 (oo
2025 REVISED TOTAL
v 7025 newiseD TOTAL BUDGET § 11,957 64300
o Wavers Recerved [T Cpan ruid
[y s arary T 10w
reamary s esrary ¢ sse
arch s arch 5 wman.
frart s il 5 maans
= $ sy s s
une s L | fuee s vamsen
e s Lamemsi | [y s iR
st & mmzes | [agu ¢ emana
sesterber s 7 | fsestember 5
loctaber § 7615108 | [octber s
Inovemor $  cangnas | [novembor s
Ipecember 5 920038 | [December 5
[Receiued 15 Dare 1274875724 | |Expenses o oste s
New Carlisl
Slataca o Cas s R s Exp
Fom. v 0 VRS Bank Report
Fed Dmowon  Bwnwa  Weifeen  SeEwees  Deier  Emurians Erira
Edca o VD Bames ¥ Baica Blanks: 001 1o 0100
Gran Taaat WA SLTMTEIM MLMIOMIE  SAWSNOIT  SROMRE 505087 As OF: 1/112025 to 12/31/2025 Include Inactive Bank Accounts: No
Bank Beginning Bl MTD Revenue  YTD Revenue MTD Expense  Y1D Expense YD Other  Ending Bal.
PG - GENERAL EECEE SimTEE | Sa2BZE 5 SEiamds  SMOEM  (SISB0RIN
PNC - PAYROLL Sz 708 68 Siadons  Szusdsasa Sras0ds 16527356 S37066035
STAR OHIO 5424223 60 314880 50 S180.535 44 500 sa00 sa00
US BANK INVESTHENTS §1,050.26.69 56,553 67 4090007 sa.0 sa.00 sa.00
PARK NAT. SECURED - GENERAL §125014064 suas2 sigsssmor swadimiz  S4ER1ESLTY sano2sn2
PARK NAT - 51,081,850 58 $1019585 2515821 5200 5200 o
PARK NAT. - MAYORS COURT $20000 s141350 si2360.50 141350 saz38150 500
PG - MMEA SAVH 5000 stizar 1270757 sa s000 375000000
HCF -CD sa02r210 s23570 35255 s000 s00 sa00
CASH ONHAND ss00.00 s000 s0.00 sa00 sa00 sa00
Grand Total 5025743312  S062,60538 SIZ74407174 5114760586 $12,04640408 5000
MONTHLY NET INCOME TAX COLLECTION COMPARISON 2024-2025
o cca STATE OF OHIO ATTORNEY GENERAL
ws | oo 202 2005 | omrenence 2024 2025 | owsnence [ovmenoncr
S6246423 wan 5009 %o o so00|  simwl s
1 | sinasao raw | suavs|  see] srams Sooo| _srs:20e| s752296
$in9m 9 | s1047215 | s30ammts | a | saowrss| sisersol seoos 000 _seomsa] sesmase
snsaiss | swaisen | ssoawaa | a0 ssees|  swam| s sianass]  seowss] sirs657
ar s20s1a51 | $843030 | 29o% | samausl snaviml s3ecoss siasass] ool saereas
are sa01.72058 2% | smaoan| s sie $3.6827))
23059911 194% 5000 000 saco 563601
aosr | 12673 | sursien t00an | sisaisas] ssaseoa] Sessese | wrom | $3157.70]  sasool sauam
o] 12533661 | suesairen oo | sisassae]  sseaur| suszos | e | $297.00 s000] 31700
ocroses | suwssesaz soas1 | szarsess | 1saex 000 000 _sam sa78os]  sarool sision
wovewsan | s107.22161 | suassens | ssssasss | wom | sisaray $000] s15.27542 susol  seson
owcoeen | sunaay | ssozsra | smsensa | sesiw o0 soo0|_som $7033]  sascol
rovuss | zoresonss | 22367513 (15957120 | 7.60% | 10327338 | 554273 | (@r.63065)| -a6a2% | 27.30039| 2980200] 270201 | 9906%
State of O colections are oy business Net
Profit taves from those that 0pt 010 e waih the
tate, remaining et Profit tax s iciuded n CCA
olncoon
COMBINED TOTAL NET COLLECTIONS-2025  $2,321,860.26 2

Motion to accept Finance Report: 1°%: Cook 2"%: Shamy YES: Lindsey, Cook, Bahun, Grow, Wright,
Eggleston, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0



1/20/26

$ 138000 § 4052650

Motion to accept Mayors Court Report: 1%%: Shamy 2": Cook YES: Bahun, Grow, Wright,
Eggleston, Shamy, Lindsey, Cook NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0

Mr. Hall began reviewing the City Manager’s report:
e Upcoming legislation will include Charter amendment updates
e Ms. Colleen Harris, Finance Director, reviewed highlights of End of 2025 financial year.
Excellent job to all departments on a great year.
e Mr. Hall expressed appreciation to administration and council on 2025 being a great year
end.

e Beginning interviews for 2 new positions
o Newsletter will be hitting mailboxes any day, it is great and hope everyone enjoys it
e USS update: Studebakers and USS are working together to serve meals to seniors on
Mondays and Wednesdays from 11-1 with a limited menu. More details to come at
upcoming meetings.
9. Comments from Members of the Public (Comments less than 5 minutes)
e Charlotte Farley, 1204 Hemlock Way: Spoke on behalf on the seniors of City of New Carlisle,
thanked individuals for their support. Bryan Moore for providing a New Years Day meal and
Bill Cook for a MLK day meal. Expressed excitement and appreciation to begin working on
the Social Service Commission.
e Emily Seymour: 700 Lake, Emerald Bilbrey: 230 N. Pike St. and Elizabeth Handwerker: 301
N. Medway Carlisle Rd: Discussion on potential of forming a ‘Friends of the Pool’ 501¢3 non-
profit group and requested information and details on donating funds directly to the pool.
Council and administration discussed fundraising and opportunities for the pool and the
future of the pool. Responsibilities of the city vs. Swimsafe vs. Parks and Rec board.
10. RESOLUTIONS: (5 - Intro; -5- Action*)
*A. Resolution 2026-01R (Introduction, Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)
A RESOLUTION AMENDING AND ADOPTING THE NEW CARLISLE RULES OF COUNCIL. Failed due to lack of
motion. Ex: Amended rules to move council meetings to Tuesday.
*B. Resolution 2026-02R (Introduction, Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE NEW CARLISLE RULES OF COUNCIL 1%: Cook 2"*: Shamy YES: Lindsey,
Cook, Bahun, Grow, Wright, Shamy NAY: Eggleston Accepted 6-1 Ex: Accept the current Rules of council
with no changes
*C. Resolution 2026-03R (Introduction, Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)
A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE PERMANENT TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM THE GENERAL FUND TO
THE STREET LEVY, GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT, TWIN CREEKS BOND, STREET SWEEPER BOND AND
GOVERNMENT CENTER FUNDS OF THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE 1%: Shamy 2": Cook YES: Bahun, Grow,
Wright, Eggleston, Shamy, Lindsey, Cook Accepted 7-0 Ex: Annual transfer of money to pay bills
*D. Resolution 2026-04R (Introduction, Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SPONSORSHIP AND DONATION POLICY FOR THE NEW CARLISLE POOL 1%t
Shamy 2": Wright YES: Eggleston, Shamy, Lindsey, Cook, Bahun, Grow, Wright Accepted 7-0 Ex:
Adopting the Pool sponsorship and banner policy
*E. Resolution 2026-05R (Introduction, Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT WEST JEFFERSON STREET
AND SOUTH ADAMS STREET 1°: Shamy 2": Wright YES: Eggleston, Shamy, Lindsey, Cook, Bahun, Grow,
Wright Accepted 7-0 Ex: Real Estate transaction of the Presbyterian Church on Jefferson Street. Council
asked questions about cost to remodel / update the buildings — these evaluations are in process now by
the architect.




1/20/26

11. ORDINANCES: (2-Intro; — 0-Action*)
A. Ordinance 2026-01 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 02/02/26)
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
WITH THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UNIT FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADDING A CELL PHONE ISSUANCE AND
STIPEND POLICY
B. Ordinance 2026-02 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 02/02/26)
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLE VIII OF THE CITY CHARTER
12. Other Business:

Additional City Business

e Moratorium Discussion — Current Moratorium expires 4/1/26

¢ Motion to change zoning code to not allow dispensaries or vape shops in town. 1%
Bahun 2": Shamy Council and administration discussed other items that need to be
considered to include in this motion. Vice Mayor Shamy withdrew his motion,
Councilman Bahun withdrew his motion
e Proposed Mayor Charter Amendment - Attached
e Open for Discussion on City Related Business:
¢ Councilwoman Wright interested in trying to get grants for the Opioid grants
available. It will take close to 2 years to prepare and potentially receive the grant; it
is a lot of work. Motion to Allow Councilwoman Wright to work on grants to go
toward the Rec Center 1°: Wright 2"%: Shamy YES: Lindsey, Cook, Bahun, Grow,
Wright, Eggleston, Shamy Nay: O Accepted 7-0
¢ Councilwoman Wright discussed a possible 501c3 for the Social Services Commission
13. Executive Session:
14. Return to Regular Session:
15. Adjournment: 1% Shamy 2": Cook at 8:07pm YES: Bahun, Grow, Wright, Eggleston, Shamy, Lindsey,
Cook NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0

Mayor William Lindsey Clerk of Council Christine Stapleton




City Manager Report
February 2, 2026

A. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

e The Following Departmental Reports will be given at the next City Council meeting that will be held
on Tuesday, February 17, 2026; Finance, Public Service, Fire/EMS, Police, Planning & Zoning, and
Mayor's Court Report.

B. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

o  Upcoming Legislation
» Moratoriums
1 Union MOU for Educational Reimbursement
® New Public Works Vehicle

o  Discussion Topics
s Winter Storm Fern Wrap Up
n New Hires
¢ Code Enforcement Officer- 2/9/26 Jeremy Leist
¢ Administrative Assistant- 2/17/26 Stephanie White
s Fire Inspection Results

Attachment Summary:

None

Motion summary:
None



ORDINANCE 2026-01

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING
UNIT FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADDING A CELL PHONE ISSUANCE AND STIPEND

POLICY

WHEREAS, the non-exempt employees of the City of New Carlisle are represented by
Ohio Council 8, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO,
and Local No. 101, Dayton Public Service Union; and

WHEREAS, the City provides City-owned cell phones to some employees, for City
business, at an average monthly cost of approximately $39.99 per cell phone; and

WHEREAS, some employees would prefer to use their personal cell phones for City
business and receive a stipend of $30.00 per month instead of being issued City-owned cell
phones; and

WHEREAS, the City and Union desire to enter into the attached memorandum of
understanding for the purpose of addressing City-owned cell phones and cell phone stipends in
the current Collective Bargaining Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS that:

1. The attached memorandum of understanding is hereby approved.

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the memorandum
of understanding on behalf of the City of New Carlisle.

Passed this day of , 2026.

William Lindsey, MAYOR

Christine Stapleton, Clerk of Council



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW

Balnmn Y | N
Cook Y | N
Eggleston Y | N
Grow Y | N
Mayor Lindsey Y | N
Vice Mayor Shamy Y | N
Wright Y | N
Totals:
Pass Fail

Introduction and First Reading: 01/20/2026
Second Reading and Action: 02/02/2026
Effective Date of Legislation: 02/17/2026



el

City of New Carlisle AFSCME
@ OHIO COUNCIL

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

To: Dave Coleman, Chapter Chair
Pete McLinden, Staff Representative
From: Donald R. Hall III, City Manager
Date: January 20, 2026
Subject: Addition of a Cell Phone Issuance and Stipend Policy to the Collective

Bargaining Agreement

The City of New Carlisle, Ohio, and the Dayton Public Service Union Local No. 101
A.F.S.C.M.E Ohio Council 8 agree to amend the current Collective Bargaining Agreement by
adding Article 36 — Cell Phone Issuance and Stipend Policy.

The New Carlisle Cell Phone Issuance and Stipend Policy is attached to this Memorandum of
Understanding and incorporated herein by reference.
For the City of New Carlisle:

By: Date:
Donald R. Hall 111, City Manager

For the Union:

By: Date:
Pete McLinden, Staff Representative

By: Date:
Dave Coleman, Chapter Chair




M:LCity of New Carlisle

City of New Carlisle Cell Phone Issuance and Stipend Policy

Effective Date: February 17, 2026

1.

Objective. The purpose of this policy is to establish a program whereby certain bargaining
unit employees, whose duties require a readily available cell phone through his/her work
periods and/or during non-work hours, may be issued a City-owned device or receive a
monthly personal cell phone stipend in lieu of a City-owned device.

Eligibility. Individual department heads are responsible for identifying employees who hold
positions that require a cell phone. Employees may qualify if their duties require regular
communication outside of normal working hours, involve field work or extended time away
from City facilities, require availability for emergency calls, or are in need of mobile email or
data access. The City Manager, or his designee, shall have final approval authority.

Administration. The City Manager, or his designee, shall ensure that this policy is evaluated
annually to confirm continued necessity and compliance, review employee eligibility based
on the criteria contained in this policy with individual department heads, determine the
security and privacy standards for devices used for City business, and ensure that employees
who receive a City-owned device or stipend under this policy acknowledge the requirements
of this policy in writing.

Procedures and Requirements. The procedures and requirements for employees to receive
a City-owned device or stipend are as follows:

a. City-Owned Devices.

1. Establishment.
1. The employee must obtain written approval from the department
head, subject to the City Manager’s or his designee’s final approval,
for a City-owned device.

2. The phone number will be shared as necessary for City purposes and
be subject to disclosure as a public record.

il. Restrictions on Use of City-Owned Devices.
1. As a general rule, City-owned devices are not intended nor should
they be used for personal use.



2.

1i.  Audit.

Occasional personal calls or text messages on City-owned devices,
due to personal emergencies or other unforeseen circumstances, are
not in violation of this policy unless such personal use becomes
abusive, extreme or repetitive.

The City reserves the right to audit/review use of City-owned devices
for compliance with this policy.

Employees have no right to nor expectation of privacy while using
City-owned devices.

iv. Care of City-Owned Devices.

1.

2.

Employees must safeguard any City-owned devices in their
possession.

An employee must report a lost, stolen or damaged City-owned
device to the department head immediately.

v. Return of City-Owned Devices.

1.

2.

b. Stipend.

If the employee’s department head or the City Manager, or his
designee, determines that the employee no longer needs a City-owned
device, then the employee shall promptly return the device to the City.

An employee whose employment is terminated, voluntarily or
involuntarily, shall promptly return any City-owned device to the
City.

1. Establishment.

1.

The employee must obtain written approval from the department
head, subject to the City Manager’s or his designee’s final approval,
for the stipend.

The employee is responsible for maintaining a cell phone account
under the employee’s name, and purchasing a cell phone and any
other necessary equipment.

The stipend will be effective the first payroll period following
approval of the stipend.

All costs and contractual obligations, including termination fees,
related to the purchase and usage of the cell phone are the employee’s
sole responsibility.



5. The employee’s phone number must be provided to the City and will

be shared as necessary for City purposes, and will be subject to
disclosure as a public record.

ii. Payment of Stipend.

1.

The monthly stipend amount is Thirty and xx/100 Dollars ($30.00).

2. Monthly stipends will be divided bi-weekly and paid in accordance

with the City’s current payroll schedule.

The dollar amount of the stipend will not be included in the
calculation of percentage increases to base pay due to annual raises,
job upgrades, etc.

The stipend is considered to be taxable income and the employee
shall be responsible for any taxes due, but the stipend is not included
in other wage calculations (e.g., retirement) unless required by law.

iii. Termination/Cancellation or Replacement of Service.

1.

2.

If the cell phone service of an employee receiving a stipend is
terminated or cancelled, then the employee must promptly find a
replacement cell phone service. The employee must immediately
notify the department head of termination, cancellation and/or service
replacement.

Receiving a stipend without a cell phone plan is prohibited.

iv. Maintenance and Lost, Stolen or Damaged Equipment.

1.

Employees are responsible for the maintenance of their cell phones,
both hardware and software.

An employee is responsible for the replacement of any lost, stolen or
damaged equipment and must do so as soon as possible.

In the event of a lost, stolen or significantly damaged cell phone, the
employee must notify his or her department head immediately.

v. Ending a Stipend.

1.

A stipend may be ended for any of the following reasons: termination
or cancellation of cell phone service without obtaining a replacement
service, determination by the City Manager or his designee that the
employee no longer qualifies for a cell phone stipend under this
policy, extended absence of the employee or termination of
employment.



2. The stipend will stop being paid the next payroll period after the
stipend is ended.

3. Upon a stipend being ended, the City will wipe the employee’s cell
phone to delete City information from the device. It is the employee’s
responsibility to back up personal applications and data prior to this
event. The employee is not authorized to restore any applications or
data that originated through City employment following this process.

c. Miscellaneous Provisions Applicable to All Employees Who Receive a City-Owned

Device or Stipend.

L.

il

1il.

1v.

Violation of this policy by an employee may result in disciplinary action.

All City-owned devices and cell phones for which an employee receives a
stipend must be strictly maintained and operated in accordance with state and
federal law, and City ordinances and policies, including any security policies.

Communication records involving City business are public records. Because
of that, no communication records involving City business are permitted to be
deleted without prior department head authorization. Additionally, the
employee shall, upon the City’s request, immediately provide public records
from the cell phone. The intent of this provision is to permit the City to
provide prompt inspection of public records in accordance with Ohio Rev.
Code Section 149.43.

Employees with City-owned devices or who receive a cell phone stipend are
expected to have their devices in their possession at all times during their
work shifts and as necessary to fulfill their employment responsibilities.



ORDINANCE 2026-02

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE ELECTORS OF THE
CITY OF NEW CARLISLE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLE VIII OF THE CITY
CHARTER

WHEREAS, Atrticle XI, Section 11.04 of the City Charter requires that a Charter Review
Commission (“Commission”) meet every eight (8) years for the purpose of reviewing the Charter and
recommending to Council such alterations, revisions and amendments, if any, to the Charter that the
Commission deems desirable; and

WHEREAS, said Commission was appointed in accordance with Section 11.04 and has made
recommendations to Council for amendments to the Charter; and

WHEREAS, Council has also reviewed the Charter and decided that certain other amendments to
the Charter may be necessary or desirable; and

WHEREAS, Council has determined that amendments to Article VIII of the Charter should be
submitted to the electors of the City at the election to be held on May 5, 2026.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS, at least five
(5) of the members of Council elected thereto concurring, that:

Section 1. The question of the amendments to Article VIII of the City of New Carlisle Charter
shall be submitted as a single ballot item, to a vote of the qualified electors of the City at the May
5, 2026 primary election, at the regular hours and regular places of voting in the City. If
approved by a majority vote at said election, Article VIII of the City Charter shall be amended as
shown on Exhibit A and shall become effective thirty (30) days after its adoption by the voters.

Section 2. The ballot for the question shall be titled: “Proposed Charter Amendment City of New
Carlisle” and the question to be submitted on the ballot shall be in substantially the same form as
shown on the attached Exhibit B.

Section 3. The Director of Law is authorized to amend the ballot language as may be necessary
or as may be required by the Clark County Board of Elections or the Ohio Secretary of State, for
ballot purposes.

Section 4. RC § 3505.56 requires that when condensed text is used on a ballot question, issue or
amendment, the full text of the proposed question, issue or amendment, together with the

percentage of affirmative votes necessary for passage, shall be posted in each polling place. The
attached Exhibit A shall be used as the full text of the proposed ballot item at each polling place.

Section 5. The Clark County Board of Elections shall give public notice of the time and place of
holding the election on the proposed Charter amendments at least ten (10) days prior to the day of
the election in accordance with RC § 3501.03.

Section 6. The Clerk of Council is directed to publish the full text of the proposed Charter
amendments once a week for not less than two (2) consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general
circulation in the City or as provided in RC § 7.16, with the first publication being at least fifteen
(15) days prior to the election in accordance with Ohio Constitution, Article XVIII, Section 9 and
RC § 731.211.



Section 7. The Clerk of Council is directed to certify a copy of this Ordinance to the Clark
County Board of Elections.

Section 8. If the amendments to Article VIII of the Charter of the City of New Carlisle are
approved by a majority vote, the Clerk of Council shall certify a copy of the amendments to the
Ohio Secretary of State within thirty (30) days of the election.

Section 9. It is found that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the
adoption of this Ordinance were in an open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of
this Council that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public in compliance
with all legal requirements, including RC § 121.22 and the Rules of Council.

Passed this day of , 2026.

William Lindsey, MAYOR

Christine Stapleton, Clerk of Council
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW

Bahun Y | N
Cook Y | N
Eggleston Y | N
Grow Y | N
Mayor Lindsey b | N
Vice Mayor Shamy Y | N
Wright Y | N
Totals: -

Pass Fail

Introduction and First Reading: 01/20/2026
Second Reading and Action: 02/02/2026
Effective Date of Legislation: 02/17/2026



Ordinance 2026-XX
Exhibit A

CITY OF NEW CARLISLE BALLOT ITEM
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLE VIII OF THE CITY’S CHARTER
A majority affirmative vote is necessary for passage.

New text is shown in italicized print. Deleted text is shown in stricken print.

ARTICLE VIII - PLANNING

Section 8.01. Planning Director.

There shall be a Planning Department headed by a director who shall be appointed by the

Manager with the approval of Council as-previdedin-Seetion-6-0+. The Planning Director shall
have the following responsibilities:

(a) To study and advise the City Manager on any matter affecting the physical development of
the City;

(b) To formulate and recommend to the Manager a comprehensive plan and modification
thereof;

(¢) To review and make recommendations to the Council regarding proposed Council action
implementing the comprehensive plan pursuant to Section 8.04;

(d) To participate in the preparation and revision of the capital program provided for in
Section 7.05;

(¢) To advise the Planning Board in the exercise of its responsibilities and in connection
therewith to provide necessary staff assistance; and

(f) To coordinate the planning activities of the City with the planning operations of the
County.

Section 8.02. Planning Board.

There shall be a Planning Board consisting of five (5) members appointed by the Council for
terms of three (3) years from among the qualified electors of the City. Members of the Board
should possess the education and experience necessary to ensure that the Board satisfactorily
Sfulfills its responsibilities. A Chairperson shall be elected annually by a majority vote of the
members. Members of the Board shall hold no other City office. The Board shall make
recommendations to the Manager and the Council on all matters affecting the physical
development of the City, shall be consulted on the comprehensive plan and the implementation
thereof as provided in Sections 8.03 and 8.04, and shall exercise all other responsibilities as may
be provided by this Charter or by ordinance for the protection and improvement of the health,
safety and welfare of the citizens of New Carlisle.



Section 8.03. Comprehensive Plan.

(a) Content. The Council shall have the authority to adopt, and may from time to time modify,
a comprehensive plan setting forth in graphic and textual form policies, laws and regulations to
govern the future physical development of the City. Such plan may cover the entire City and all
of its functions and services or specific geographic areas which together cover the entire City.

(b) Adoption. Upon receipt from the Manager of a proposed comprehensive plan or proposed
modification of an existing plan, the Council shall refer such proposal to the Planning Board
which shall, within a time specified by the Council, report its recommendations thereon. After
the receipt of the recommendations of the Planning Board, the Council shall hold a public
hearing on the proposed comprehensive plan or modification thereof and shall take action by
resolution with or without amendment.

(c) Effect. The comprehensive plan shall serve as a guide to all future Council action
concerning land use and development regulations, urban renewal programs, and expenditures for
capital improvements.

(d) Review. The Council shall review the comprehensive plan as needed, and at least once
every ten years.

Section 8.05. Board of Appeals.

(a) The Council shall by ordinance establish a Board of Appeals and shall provide standards
and procedures for such Board to hear and to determine appeals from administrative decisions,
petitions for variances in cases of peculiar and unusual circumstances and hardships which
would prevent the reasonable use of land or such other matters as may be required by the
Council.

(b) The Board of Appeals shall be composed of five (5) members appointed by Council and
they the members may hold no other City office, except as otherwise provided in division (d) of
this Section.

(c) The City Manager shall appoint a Zoning Inspector whose duties shall be described in
"Zoning Regulations" as established by Council. The City Manager may serve as Zoning
Inspector.

(d) Council is permitted to serve as the acting Board of Appeals anytime there are fewer
than three (3) members appointed to and serving on the Board of Appeals.



Ordinance 2026-XX
Exhibit B
Proposed Charter Amendment

City of New Carlisle
A majority affirmative vote is necessary for passage.

Shall Article VIII, Sections 8.01, 8.02, 8.03 and 8.05 of the Charter of the City of New Carlisle
be amended as follows:

Article VIIT — Planning (Summary)

Remove the reference to Section 6.01 of the Charter regarding the appointment of the Planning
Director. Add that Members of the Planning Board should possess the education and experience
necessary to ensure that the Board satisfactorily fulfills its responsibilities. Add that Council
shall review the comprehensive plan as needed, and at least once every ten years. Specify that
members of the Board of Appeals may hold no other City office, except as otherwise provided in
division (d) of Section 8.05 of the Charter. Add that Council is permitted to serve as the acting
Board of Appeals when fewer than three members are appointed to and serving on the Board of
Appeals?

YES
NO



ORDINANCE 2026-03

AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING A MORATORIUM ON NEW VAPE SHOPS
WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ohio Constitution and the Ohio Revised Code,
municipal corporations possess broad authority to enact planning and zoning regulations
to protect the public health, safety, welfare, comfort and peace, including the authority to
regulate and restrict areas used for business and trade; and

WHEREAS, the City has observed an increase in the volume of businesses that
sell electronic smoking devices, as that term is defined in Ohio Revised Code Section
2927.02; and

WHEREAS, a business that sells a significant amount of electronic smoking
devices is often referred to as a “Vape Shop”; and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2025, City Council adopted Ordinance 2025-11 for
the purpose of imposing a moratorium on the consideration and/or granting of any
zoning, occupancy, building or other permits or applications relating to new Vape Shops
for a period of twelve (12) months; and

WHEREAS, City Council requires additional time to study and evaluate the
City’s planning and zoning ordinances and business regulations applicable to new Vape
Shops to determine the appropriate locations and regulatory standards for such use; and

WHEREAS, extending the moratorium will allow City Council adequate time to
more fully consider these matters prior to the possible enactment of future legislation.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY
ORDAINS that:

SECTION 1. The moratorium on the consideration and/or granting of any zoning,
occupancy, building or other permits or applications relating to new Vape Shops is
hereby extended and imposed for an additional twelve (12) months from the effective
date of this Ordinance.

SECTION 2. While the moratorium is in effect, no use permit, variance, building
permit, business license or other applicable land use entitlement may be approved or
issued for the establishment or operation of any new Vape Shop within the City of New
Carlisle.

SECTION 3. For purposes of this Ordinance, the term “Vape Shop” means any
establishment, structure, facility, vehicle, stand or cart that devotes five percent (5%) or
more of its floor space or display area to the sale, display, marketing, bartering, trading or
exchange of electronic smoking devices. The term “Vape Shop” shall be broadly and
liberally interpreted to carry out the intent of this Ordinance.



Passed this day of , 2026.

William Lindsey, MAYOR

Christine Stapleton, Clerk of Council
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW

Bahun Y | N
Cook Y | N
Eggleston Y | N
Grow Y | N
Mayor Lindsey Y | N
Vice Mayor Shamy Y | N
Wright Y | N
Totals:
Pass Fail

Introduction and First Reading: 02/02/2026
Second Reading and Action: 02/17/2026
Effective Date of Legislation: 03/04/2026



ORDINANCE 2026-04

AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE MORATORIUM ON CANNABIS
OPERATIONS WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code Section 3780.25 authorizes the legislative authority of
a municipal corporation to prohibit or limit the number of adult use cannabis operators, including
cultivators, dispensaries and processors, within its jurisdiction, and Ohio Revised Code Section
3796.29 authorizes the legislative authority of a municipal corporation to prohibit or limit the
number of medical marijuana cultivators, dispensaries and processors within its jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, for the purposes of this Ordinance, “Cannabis Operations” includes any and
all of the following: adult use cannabis operators regulated under Chapter 3780 of the Ohio
Revised Code, and medical marijuana cultivators, dispensaries and processors regulated under
Chapter 3796 of the Ohio Revised Code; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ohio Constitution and the Ohio Revised Code, municipal
corporations possess broad authority to enact planning and zoning regulations to protect the
public health, safety, welfare, comfort and peace, including the authority to regulate and restrict
areas used for business and trade; and

WHEREAS, the City does not presently have zoning classifications that specifically
address Cannabis Operations; and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2025, City Council adopted Ordinance 2025-12 for the
purpose of imposing a moratorium on the consideration and/or granting of any zoning,
occupancy, building or other permits or applications relating to Cannabis Operations for a period
of twelve (12) months; and

WHEREAS, on December 9, 2025, the Ohio General Assembly passed Senate Bill 56,
which made several changes to Ohio cannabis laws; and

WHEREAS, in light of the recent passage of Senate Bill 56, City Council requires
additional time to study and evaluate the City’s planning and zoning ordinances and business
regulations in order to determine whether Cannabis Operations should be permitted within the
City and, if so, the appropriate locations and regulatory standards for such uses; and

WHEREAS, extending the moratorium on Cannabis Operations will allow City Council
adequate time to more fully consider these matters prior to the possible enactment of future
legislation.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS that:

SECTION 1. The moratorium on the consideration and/or granting of any zoning, occupancy,
building or other permits or applications relating to Cannabis Operations is hereby extended and
imposed for an additional twelve (12) months from the effective date of this Ordinance.

SECTION 2. While the moratorium is in effect, no use permit, variance, building permit,
business license or other applicable land use entitlement may be approved or issued for Cannabis
Operations within the City of New Carlisle.



Passed this day of , 2026.

William Lindsey, MAYOR

Christine Stapleton, Clerk of Council
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW

Bahun Y | N
Cook Y | N
Eggleston Y | N
Grow Y | N
Mayor Lindsey Y | N
Vice Mayor Shamy Y | N
Wright Y | N
Totals:
Pass Fail

Introduction and First Reading: 02/02/2026
Second Reading and Action: 02/17/2026
Effective Date of Legislation: 03/04/2026



ORDINANCE 2026-05

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON SMALL SOLAR
FACILITIES WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO

WHEREAS, the Ohio Power Siting Board (“OPSB”), a state agency within the
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, is responsible for approving major utility facilities,
including large-scale wind farms, solar projects, and electric transmission lines, and has
exclusive jurisdiction over solar electric generation facilities of fifty (50) megawatts or
more; and

WHEREAS, on January 5, 2023, the Ohio General Assembly passed House Bill
501 granting municipal corporations express authority to pass zoning restrictions on
Small Solar Facilities, which are solar generation facilities of less than fifty (50)
megawatts; and

WHEREAS, for purposes of this Ordinance, “Small Solar Facility” means solar
panels and associated facilities with a single interconnection to the electrical grid,
designed for or capable of operating at less than fifty (50) megawatts, that function
primarily as a power generation facility for the sale of electricity; and

WHEREAS, the City does not presently have zoning classifications that
specifically address Small Solar Facilities; and

WHEREAS, City Council desires to study the City’s planning and zoning
regulations and business regulations in order to determine whether Small Solar Facilities
should be permitted within the City and, if so, the appropriate locations and regulatory
standards for such uses; and

WHEREAS, a moratorium will allow City Council adequate time to more fully
consider these matters prior to the possible enactment of future legislation.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY
ORDAINS that:

SECTION 1. A moratorium on the consideration and/or granting of any zoning,
occupancy, building or other permits or applications relating to Small Solar Facilities is
hereby imposed for twelve (12) months from the effective date of this Ordinance.

SECTION 2. While the moratorium is in effect, no use permit, variance, building
permit, business license or other applicable land use entitlement may be approved or
issued for the establishment or operation of any Small Solar Facility within the City of
New Carlisle.

SECTION 3. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prohibit or restrict the
installation or operation of solar energy systems intended primarily to serve on-site
residential, business, industrial or agricultural uses in compliance with Chapter 1295 of
the City Ordinances.



Passed this day of , 2026.

William Lindsey, MAYOR

Christine Stapleton, Clerk of Council
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW

Bahun Y | N
Cook Y | N
Eggleston Y | N
Grow Y | N
Mayor Lindsey Y | N
Vice Mayor Shamy Y | N
Wright Y | N
Totals:
Pass Fail

Introduction and First Reading: 02/02/2026
Second Reading and Action: 02/17/2026
Effective Date of Legislation: 03/04/2026



ORDINANCE 2026-06

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON DATA CENTERS
WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ohio Constitution and the Ohio Revised Code,
municipal corporations possess broad authority to enact planning and zoning regulations
to protect the public health, safety, welfare, comfort and peace, including the authority to
regulate and restrict areas used for business and trade; and

WHEREAS, “Data Centers” are industrial-scale facilities that consume
significant energy, water and infrastructure capacity, and may create water supply issues,
impose substantial utility demands that the City may be unable to support, cause potential
environmental and neighborhood impacts, and potentially conflict with the City’s long-
term planning goals; and

WHEREAS, the City does not presently have zoning classifications that
specifically address Data Centers; and

WHEREAS, City Council desires to study the City’s planning and zoning
regulations and business regulations in order to determine whether Data Centers should
be permitted within the City and, if so, the appropriate locations and regulatory standards
for such uses; and

WHEREAS, a moratorium will allow City Council adequate time to more fully
consider these matters prior to the possible enactment of future legislation.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY
ORDAINS that:

SECTION 1. A moratorium on the consideration and/or granting of any zoning,
occupancy, building or other permits or applications relating to Data Centers is hereby
imposed for twelve (12) months from the effective date of this Ordinance.

SECTION 2. While the moratorium is in effect, no use permit, variance, building
permit, business license or other applicable land use entitlement may be approved or
issued for the establishment or operation of any Data Center within the City of New
Carlisle.

SECTION 3. For purposes of this Ordinance, “Data Center” means a facility designed
or substantially modified to house a large number of computer servers and related
network and data storage equipment, with associated mechanical, electrical and utility
infrastructure necessary for continuous operation, used for the commercial or enterprise-
scale storage, processing or transmission of digital data for third parties. The term does
not include office or business facilities where such equipment is incidental to the primary
use.

SECTION 4. The moratorium shall apply to Data Centers and any substantially similar
use, regardless of name.



Passed this day of , 2026.

William Lindsey, MAYOR

Christine Stapleton, Clerk of Council
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW

Bahun Y | N
Cook Y | N
Eggleston Y | N
Grow Y | N
Mayor Lindsey Y | N
Vice Mayor Shamy Y | N
Wright Y | N
Totals:
Pass Fail

Introduction and First Reading: 02/02/2026
Second Reading and Action: 02/17/2026
Effective Date of Legislation: 03/04/2026





